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The Marston House sits on a gently sloping portion of its extensive site
overlooking Balboa Park. From the east side (rear) of the building, the
ground slopes down more sharply to State Highway 163, located at the bottom
of the canyon. To the south of the house is a large, well maintained lawn;
to the north there is a formal garden and service buildings. The land-
scaping is original and dates from the completion of the house.

Construction is of brick veneer to the height of the second floor level,
with a frame wall system and plaster surface above that line. Portions of
the second floor project beyond the first floor wall. The gable roof forms
with their sweeping eaves are covered with shakes (originally with redwood
shingles). A major ridge runs east to west, with a second one near the
east end of the house tying into its north slope. There are two flat
dormers on each side of the main roof.

The house is "L" shaped in plan with the long leg of the L facing south,

and the foot facing east. Entrance is at the top of the L, on the west,
through a porte-cochere. Along the south flank of the building is a broad
brick-tiled terrace terminated at the eastern end by a covered and partially
enclosed pergola. The service entrance and service yard is situated at

the toe of the L, facing north. The structure is today covered extensively
with vines.

The interiors of the house are essentially unaltered. The entry hall
leads to the central stair hall. The stairway is an important element within
the central-‘hall. Light floods the stairway from the large north windows
at the upper level. The stairs are a generous 6' - 0" wide; details are
simple, with an unmolded railing and square ballusters. In the horthwest
corner of the house is the library; across the hall is the music room

(SW corner). At the center of the south side is the living room; the
dining room is located in the SE corner. These rooms are unchanged with
exception of the black painted woodwork in the dining room and the windpws
along the south wall. Along the foot of the L are situated the service
rooms (butler's pantry, kitchen, pantry, and service porch) and the service
stairs to the second and third levels.

The second floor contains a spacious hallway and six roomy bedrooms. Every
pair of rooms has a complete bathroom and walk-in closets. The third

floor is accessible only by the service stairway. It contains one very
large attic room with two small chambers opening off it on the west and one
large chamber on the east.

The Marston House exists today practically unaltered from the time of its
construction. Only minor changes have been made and they are compatible
with the original work. Those changes, executed by William Templeton
Johnson, employ details similar to those of. Irving Gill. With the exception
.of the noted changes, limited to window enlargements on the south side, the
house is remarkably similar to its appearance at time of its original com-
pletion.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The George W. Marston house was designed by Irving John Gill, of the
Hebbard and Gill architectural partnership of San Diego, in 1904.

The house was built during the formative years of Gill's architectural
practice. During that period Gill was experimenting with architectural
details, methods of construction and composition which would find their
ultimate expression a decade later. In this commission, Gill was
apparently somewhatr restricted in his design freedom by a strong willed
client with specific directions. He did, however, present some of his own
ideas, especially with regard to the simplicity of detailing and qualities
of space. On the third floor he was allowed a greater design freedom and
he presented for the first time in his work the slab doors and flat board
moldings, flush with the wall surface, which were to be so much a part

of his later works. Gill insisted on the elevation of the floors of the
bathrooms and closets for sanitation purposes. The interior stairway is
especially noteworthy. Light is introduced into the center of the house,
emphasizing that point as the center of circulation within. . The spacious
hall contains a broad, open stairway.

The house is a prelude to much of Gill's later work with its emphasis on
simplicity of detail, absence of ornament and convenience and comfort.
Natural wood is used exclusively to give the house a dark rich quality in
a contemporary interpretation of the heavily wooden Victorian interiors.

This building begins to mark the transition of Gill's work. 1In it there
is still a retention of the eastern brick, gabled house form. In his
later works he pursues a simplicity of design through the creation of
unadorned cubical masses. Gill's emphasis on simplicity in the Marston
House was in the form of details rather than in the building mass.

For three-quarters of a century George W. Marston was identified with the
history of modern San Diego. He arrived from Wisconsin in 1870, a few
years after Alonzo E. Horton laid out "New Town". Beginning hls San Diego
career as a clerk in the Horton House, he opened a successful dry goods
store known as "Marston's" eighteen years later.
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continued)

Marston's contributions to the City of San Diego are countless. In 1872, he,
along with Charles Hamilton, opened a free reading room, the forerunner of the
San Diego Public Library. 1In 1873, he organized the Benevolent Society of San
Diego, a prototype of our modern social agencies. In 1882, a few young men
met in his store and started the local YMCA (Marston continued to serve the
YMCA Board until his death and was President of the Board for 24 years). He
was active in the Presbyterian Church and in 1886, he helped to organize the
Congregational Church.

George Marston served the Chamber of Commerce from 1878, as Secretary, Vice-
President, and President. In 1902, he aided in organizing the San Diego and
Eastern Railroad Company with the object of securing for the city a direct
connection to the East. He also took a leading part in organizing the Park
Committee of the Chamber of Commerce, forerunner of the City's Park and Recre-
ation Board. 1In addition, he underwrote the expense for the layout of Balboa
Park, a 1400 acre park in the heart of the City. He also brought the cele-
brated planner, John Nolan, to San Diego and commissioned him to prepare what
is known as the Nolan Plan for the development of the City (1908).

The crowning expression of his public spirit took place in 1929 on the 160th
birthday of San Diego and the anniversary of Father Serra's simple service
on the hillside., Marston presented to the City the beautiful Presidio Park
(John Nolan, Landscape Architect) and the Junipero Serra Museum (William
Templeton Johnson, Architect) home of the San Diego Historical Society.

In 1878 Mr. Marston married Miss Anna Lee Gunn, daughter of Dr. Lewis C. Gunn,
who came to California in 1849. Marston's early business partner, Charles S.
Hamilton, married Elizabeth Gunn (sister of Anna Lee) in 1877. George Marston
died on May 31, 1946, after a lifetime of service and dedication to the City
of San Diego.
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